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SECTION SF 30 BLOCK 14 CONTINUATION PAGE  
         
SUMMARY OF CHANGES   
 
 
SECTION 00010 - SOLICITATION CONTRACT FORM  
         
                The required response date/time has changed from 17-Jun-2011 05:00 PM to 18-Jun-2011 02:00 PM.  
 
 
 
The following have been added by full text:  
        AMENDMENT 0001 Q & A 

Amendment 0001Bidder Inquiry Questions and Answers for W5J9LE-11-B-0001 

 

Q1: Can you confirm is FOB Lindsey the USACE Offices on KAF?  Or is this a separate FOB that is 
separate and distinct from KAF?  We are trying to determine if we have to go outside the KAF wire in 
order to reach FOB Lindsey from KAF.   
 
A1:  FOB Lindsey is separate and distinct from KAF, but relatively close.  Directions to FOB Lindsey 
from KAF are as follows: 

Departing ECP 5 heading east from KAF; turn right. 
Follow the hard surface road straight thru the market (approximately 1/2 k).  
Bear left after the market staying on the hard surface road.   
Then turn right to go over the bridge.   
(The ANA Camp Hero will be directly in front of the bridge). 
Turn left after the bridge and the entrance to Camp Lindsay will be directly in front. 
 

Transit time is approximately 15 minutes to the front gate at FOB Lindsey.   

The instruction to bidders in Section 00100 has been revised to include this information.   
 
Q2: Is permissible to provide a PDF of the Bid Guarantee with a hard copy of the original to follow as 
soon as it is made available. We foresee a difficulty getting the finalized bond produced for delivery by 
the due date in Afghanistan. 
 
A2:  Since original signatures are required on the bid bond, a PDF cannot be accepted.    The bid bond can 
be submitted separately (ahead of time) from the other items required (SF1442, Bid Schedule, Section 
00600/ Representation and Certifications).  The “Instruction to Bidder” section is Section 00100 has a 
new paragraph titled “SUBMISSION OF OFFER GUARANTEE (BID BOND) that discusses the bid 
bond requirements.   

Note:  Please see FAR 28.101-3 (Authority of an attorney-in-fact for a bid bond) that provided the 
guidance on providing evidence of authority to bind the surety.   
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FAR Clause 228-1(Bid Guarantee) has been revised in this amendment to read that the bid guarantee shall 
be $3,000,000.  Knowing this is the bid bond amount, Contractors can obtain their bid bonds now and 
submit in time for them to arrive prior to the bid opening date.   

 
Q3: We respectfully request that the Government change solicitation W5J9LE-11-B-0001 “Design and 
construction for the expansion of the ANA 207th Corps compound at Camp Zafar, Herat, Afghanistan” 
from Sealed Bid (IFB) to Best Value source selection criteria.  
 
A3:  Solicitation W5J9LE-11-B-0001 will remain as an IFB.   

 

Q4:  Request a two week extension for when bids are due. 

A4:  The bid closing date will be extended one day.  New bid closing date is 18 June 2011 at 2:00pm 
local time.    This now coincides with the bid opening date and time.   

 
Q5: In reference to the Concept Plans, can the Government please provide a revised drawing that better 
shows the location of the perimeter wall as required per the RFP instructions. Since there are two start 
points and end points it is difficult to determine its final installation. 
 

A5: The approximate length of the perimeter wall to be constructed is 2100 meters.  No further drawings 
shall be provided.  The Contractor shall construct a perimeter wall from approximately point 5 on the 
Concept Plan to approximately point 1 on the Concept Plan and from point 8 on the concept plan to the 
label “Begin Wall Construction” on the south west corner of the area labeled as “Under Construction”. 

 
Q6: Does the Government require signatures on the bid bond or if they can be submitted later after the 
price proposal has been submitted but prior to any award. 
 
A6: Original signatures are required on the offer guarantee (Standard Form 24, Bid Bond) when it is 
submitted.  The date the bond is executed must not be later than bid opening date.   
 
 
Q7:  As per Concept site plan and Drawings, please clearly specify the exact location of exist connection 
point from (Exist Power plant), and also specify how much is length between exist connection point and 
project location? 
 

A7: Refer to sheet titled “Utilities Upgrades at ANA Camp Zafar.”  It shows the location of the existing 
power plant in relation to the project.   

 
Q8:  In the IFB Section 01010  page 17 Heading 6.3 Officer Barracks, second sentence, the “Small 
Admin Buildings”  is that a typo error ?? 
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A8:  Yes.  It should say “Officers Barracks – Large – Arch Span”.   
 
 

Q9: Please advise if the POL Storage Building will be constructed with the Motor Pool Areas and Vehicle 

Maintenance Buildings under Priority 3 (450 Days Completion from NTP), or this item will be under 

Priority 4 (540 Days Completion from NTP) 

 

A9:  The POL Building shall be constructed with the Motor Pool Areas and Vehicle Maintenance 

Buildings as a Priority 3. 

 

Q10: The following Utilities are not listed, please clarify under which priority to be considered: 

 Site Grading and Storm water Management  

 Grey Water Irrigation system 

 Communication system backbone 

 

A10:  The Site Grading and Stormwater Management shall be Priority 1.  Grey water irrigation system 

and communication system backbone shall be Priority 4. 

 

Q11:  Please provide us with a detailed layout showing the existing roads, perimeter wall and anti-vehicle 

trench. 

 

A11: The Contractor shall design the layout per the solicitation. 

 

Q12: Referring to Section 01010, para.3.22, please show the proposed location of the helicopter pad on 

the master plan. 

 

A12: The proposed Helicopter Pad is labeled as “700” on the Concept Plan. 

 

Q13: Referring to Section 01010, para.3.13, please show the proposed location and layout for the (9) 

storage buildings with the corresponding outside storage and vehicle maneuver fenced areas on the master 

plan. 

A13: The proposed locations of the storage buildings are shown on the Concept Plan.  The Contractor 

shall design the layout with the corresponding outside storage and vehicular maneuver fenced areas in 

accordance with the IFB. 
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Q14: Referring to the Scope of  work  Section 01010 Para 3.22 of Helicopter Pad, please confirm that it is 

not required any electrical work for this Helicopter Pad such as lighting system, grounding system or any 

other electrical work necessary for it. 

 

A14: Refer to IFB Documents for Scope of Work Requirements. 

 

Q15: Referring to the Scope of  work  Section 01010 Para 3.23 of Football (Soccer) Field, please confirm 

that it is not required any electrical work for this Football (Soccer) Field such as lighting system, 

grounding system or any other electrical work necessary for it. 

A15: Refer to IFB Documents for Scope of Work Requirements. 

 

Q16: Referring to the Scope of work Section 01010 Para 5.3.1of Roads, please confirm that it is not 

required any electrical work for this Roads such as lighting system or any other electrical work necessary 

for it. 

A16: Refer to IFB Documents for Scope of Work Requirements. 

 

Q17: Referring to the Scope of work Section 01010 Para 5.3.2 of  Foot Paths / Fire lanes, please confirm 

that it is not required any electrical work for this Foot Paths / Fire lanes such as lighting system or any 

other electrical work necessary for it. 

A17: Refer to IFB Documents for Scope of Work Requirements. 

 

Q18: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.1 of Electrical Distribution system, 

please confirm that contractor has not any responsibility to design and construct 15 KV medium voltage 

distribution system (not in contract scope of work), as there is existing 15kv medium voltage distribution 

system in project site which the contractor shall only take from the nearest connection point of existing 

MV distribution system to supply power to distribution transformers where required of all site’s facilities 

loads. 

 

A18: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements. 

 

Q19: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.1 of Electrical Distribution system, 

please clarify on site the nearest connection points of existing 15KV power distribution system which 
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contractor shall connect with it in order to provide distribution feeders to distribute power to all site 

facilities loads or confirm that the contractor will connect with existing 15kv distribution system 

assuming the required distance from each step down distribution transformers (from 15KV to 380/220v) 

to nearest connection point is 50 LM.  

 

A19: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements and drawings. 

 

Q20: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.1 of Electrical Distribution system, 

please clarify or provide us with the corresponding details for the type and size of existing 15KV 

distribution system feeder / cable which is used in site for existing medium voltage distribution system. 

 

A20: Size all new cable to design loads of new installation. 
 
 
Q21: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.10 of Grounding & Bonding, 

please confirm that it is not required to provide lightning protection system for any facility of  project’s 

facilities except what included or shown in the standard building design drawings. 

 

A21: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements and drawings. 
 

Q22: Referring to Technical Requirements section 01015 Para 8.5.1, indicates that underground ducts of 

electrical distribution system shall be not less than 100mm ,please clarify if we can use ducts 50mm 

diameter for the small cabling sizes or not. 

 

A22: The requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements and drawings. 
 

Q23: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.10 of Fire detection & alarm 

system, please confirm that it is not required to provide complete fire alarm system including fire alarm 

panel (FACP), Smoke & Heat detectors, Manual Pull station, and any other equipments necessary for 

complete fire alarm system in this project but it is only required to provide Hardwired smoke detector for 

local alarm in all project facilities. 

 

A23: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements and drawings. 
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Q24: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.10 of Fire detection & alarm 

system, please clarify if it is required to provide Hardwired smoke detector for local alarm in all project 

facilities or some facilities like included only in Standard Building Design Drawings. 

 

A24: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements and drawings. 
 

Q25:  Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.10 & 8.5.1 of Fire detection & 

alarm system, there is a conflict between two paragraphs which Para 8.5.10 refers to “the contractor shall 

provide only hardwired smoke detectors for local alarm” but Para 8.5.1 refers to “design of the electrical 

system within facilities shall include complete fire detection & alarm system, please advice.  

 

A25: There is no conflict between these design requirements.  Provide in accordance with the 
requirements of the IFB sections and the systems shown in the Appendix drawings. 
 

Q26: Referring to Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.10 of Fire detection & alarm system, 

there is a conflict between technical requirements section 01015 Para 8.5.10 and “for information 

drawings or Standard Building Design Drawings”, 

 Technical requirements: require that the contractor shall provide only hardwired smoke 

detector for local alarm in all project facilities. 

 For information drawings (Standard Building Design Drawings) : require that the 

contractor shall install complete fire alarm system including  fire alarm panel (FACP), 

Smoke & Heat detectors, Manual Pull station, and any other equipments necessary for 

complete operation of fire alarm system in some project buildings as the followings: 

1. POL Storage Building 

2. Storage Building 

3. MWR Building 

4. Small Office Barracks  

5. Large Office Barracks  

6. Small NCO Barracks 

7. Large NCO Barracks 

8. Combination NCO / Enlisted Barracks 

9. Enlisted Barracks 

Please advise which one shall follow the Technical requirements or “For Information 

/ Standard Building Design drawings. 
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A26: Provide in accordance with the systems shown in the Appendix drawings. 
 

Q27: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 8.5.14  of cable tray system, please 

clarify the location or which buildings of project facilities that cable tray shall be used in it and also 

clarify which systems of  lighting & power circuits system or communication system that cable tray 

system is needed and necessary to be used.  

 

A27: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements. 

 

Q28: Referring to the Technical Requirements Section 01015 Para 9.2 of communication system inside 

building, please confirm that the contractor shall supply and install only RJ45 outlet boxes & jacks, empty 

conduits, communication ground Bus bar and communication plywood inside all project facilities without 

installing any communication outlets, communication Racks, communication cables (Horizontal Cable, 

Riser Cables) and any other Equipments & Spaces which are necessary for complete communication 

system.  

 

A28: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements. 

 

Q29: Referring to Technical Requirements section 01015 Para 9.3 of telecommunication site distribution, 

please confirm that the new communication ducts system will extend from the existing communication 

distribution system (nearest manhole), so please clarify the location of the nearest communication 

Manhole to connect with it. 

 

A29: The Contractor shall determine the appropriate manhole to connect to during the design process. 

 

Q30: Referring to Technical Requirements section 01015 Para 9.0 of Exterior Communication system, 

please confirm that exterior communication cables is not in the contractor’s scope of work that means the 

contractor shall not provide and install any exterior communication cables to connect between facilities 

and main distribution frame in designated building. 

A30: The work requirements for the Project are detailed in the Technical Requirements. 
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Q31: Referring to Technical Requirements section 01015 Para 9.5 of main distribution frame, please 

clarify the location of main distribution frame in designated building which the contractor shall  connect 

exterior conduits between it and all other facilities. 

A31: The Headquarters Buildings shall contain the main distribution frames in the communication rooms. 

 
Q32: Please provide information about Football (Soccer) Field, in SOW there is just mentioned that 
bidders must follow international standards, we do not know this is just football play ground with green 
area or this is like international football stadium with chairs and benches and coach area? 
 
A32: No chairs, benches or coach area are required. 

 
Q33: In given concept plan the length of Perimeter Stone Wall is shown 1650 meter and the length for 
chain link fence is 2750 meter, I do not know whether this is right or wrong? 
 

A33:  The length of the perimeter wall to be constructed is approximately 2100 meters.  The Contractor 
shall determine the length of the Chain Link Fence based upon the Contractor’s design and the 
requirements of the solicitation, any chain link fence depicted in the Concept Plan is for conceptual 
purposes only. 

Q34: As per Concept site plan and Drawings, please clearly specify the exact location of exist connection 
point from (Exist Power plant), and also specify how much is length between exist connection point and 
project location? 
 

A34: Refer to sheet titled “Utilities Upgrades at ANA Camp Zafar.”  It shows the location of the existing 
power plant in relation to the project 

 

Q35: In section 01010, Summary of work’s part 4.5 Sanitary Sewer System, it is mentioned that 
“Sanitary sewer collection system and treatment system shall be designed by contractor.” Is 
there Waste Water Treatment Plant in the scope of this Project?  If there is a Waste Water 
Treatment Plant in scope of this Project, please provide the WWTP’s technical specification. 
(Capacity, …. etc)  

A35:   A waste water treatment plant is not part of this solicitation. 

Q36: Could you please clarify the case which was illustrated in the drawing CU 103 discharge pipe line 
in the scope of this Project? If discharge pipe line is in the scope of this Project, please provide 
length of this pipe line and pipe diameter. 
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A36: There is no drawing CU 103 found in the solicitation.  There are no specific discharge pipe lines 
in the Scope of Work, but any discharge pipe lines necessary for a fully functioning facility is 
required to be designed and constructed by the Contractor. 
 

Q37: Could you please clarify whether water wells show on the drawings CU 101 and CU102 are in 
the scope of this Project? If yes, please provide necessary technical details and documents. 
 

A37: No water wells are in the scope of this project. 
 
Q38: Are DFAC’s kitchen equipments included in the scope of the Project? If yes, please provide 

necessary technical details & documents or equipments schedule. 
 

A38: See Section 01010 and Section 01015 for all requirements of the DFACs. 
 
Q39:      It appears the following drawing is missing from the package:  
     POL Storage, Electrical, E-602 Electrical Panel Schedules 
 

A39:  Drawing E-602 was missing from the original drawing package.  Drawing is provided in this 
amendment. 

  
 
 
SECTION 00100 - BIDDING SCHEDULE/INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS  
 
 
 
The following have been modified:  
        INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
INFORMATION TO BIDDERS 
 
OFFERORS are required to complete and submit the following: 
 
Standard Form 1442 Back,  
Bid Schedule, 
Section 00600, Representations and Certifications, 
Offer guarantee 
 
 
BID SUBMISSION  
 
Bids can be submitted by mail, FedEX/DHL/UPS or delivered in person.  Electronic submission of bids will not 
be accepted.   
 
 
Bids submitted by FedEX/DHL/UPS shall be sent to:   
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     Mark Jones 
     US Army Corps of Engineers 
     Kandahar, Afghanistan 
     USACE – AES 
     APO, AE 09355 
 
 
Bids submitted by mail shall be sent to: Mark Jones 
     USACE-AES 
     APO AE  09355 
 
 
Bids delivered in person:  Bids can be delivered in person to FOB Lindsey.  Contractors that choose this method of 
submitting their bids that have a Kandahar Air Field (KAF) badge can access the base without an escort and deliver 
their bid to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Castle 1 Building.  Contractors shall contact Mr. Job 
Sayago at 079-986-3287 (roshan) prior to arrival to coordinate delivery of the bid proposal since building access is 
restricted.   
 
If the Contractor does not have a KAF badge, they shall contact Mr. Job Sayago and he will meet the individual at 
the FOB Lindsey front gate to pick up the bid package.   
 
DIRECTIONS TO FOB LINDSEY FROM KAF 
 
Departing ECP 5 heading east from KAF; turn right. 
Follow the hard surface road straight thru the market (approximately 1/2 k).  
Bear left after the market staying on the hard surface road.   
Then turn right to go over the bridge.   
(The ANA Camp Hero will be directly in front of the bridge). 
Turn left after the bridge and the entrance to Camp Lindsay will be directly in front. 
 

Transit time is approximately 15 minutes to the front gate at FOB Lindsey.   

 
 
 
ENVELOPE(S) PURSUANT TO FAR 14.201-5 
 
Envelope (s) shall be plainly marked with the following information: 
Solicitation No. W5J9LE-11-B-0001_________________ 
Opening Date ___________________________________ 
Number of each amendment, which has been received 
______________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
BID CLOSING 
 
All bids are due no later than 18 June 2011 at 2:00 pm local time.   
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BID OPENING 
 
The bid opening will be held at FOB Lindsey on 18 June 2011 at 2:00 pm local time at the USACE Castle 1 
Building, 2nd floor conference room.   
 
To gain access to the base at FOB Lindsey, contractors will need either a KAF Badge or they will need to submit the 
Visitor Badge Application located at the end of this section.   
 
Contractors with KAF Badge: 
 
Contractors that possess a KAF badge that desire to attend the bid opening can access FOB Lindsey without an 
escort.  They should report to USACE Castle 1 building in sufficient time to be seated in the conference room by 
2:00 pm local time.  They shall contact Mr. Job Sayago at 079-986-3287 to obtain access to the building.   
 
Contractors without a KAF Badge: 
 
Contractors that do not possess a KAF Badge shall fill out a Visitor Badge Application form provided with this 
solicitation and as a separate document and submit via email to Mr. Job Sayago at job.sayago@usace.army.mil.  The 
application shall be submitted a minimum of four days prior to the bid opening date.   
 
On the day of bid opening, contractors shall report to the front gate at FOB Lindsey no later than 1:00 pm local time.  
They shall contact Mr. Job Sayago at 079-986-3287 once they arrive.  Mr. Sayago will escort individuals to the 
Force Protection office.  Each contractor will be required to present either their Passport or Tazkera to show 
proof of identity.  Individuals will complete the check in process at the Force Security Office and then be escorted 
to the USACE Castle 1 Building.     
 
Note:  Electronic devices are not allowed on FOB Lindsey and will be collected at the Front Gate.  
Contractors are reminded to contract Mr. Sayago prior to turning in their cell phones or other devices.   
 
 
PRICE BASIS 
 
Bidders are advised that only bids submitted on a firm price basis will be considered, and that bids submitted on any 
other than firm price basis will be rejected. (FAR 14.201-2 (a))  
 
Bid price alterations, i.e., crossed-out or white-out changes on the bid will not be accepted unless the change (s) 
is/are initialed by the person authorized to sign bid package. 
 
 
BID QUANTITIES 
 
Bids for less than specified quantities of each item in Section 00010 of the Schedule will not be considered. Failure 
to submit a unit price for each item where required in the Schedule will be considered as a material deviation from 
the requirements of the solicitation, and the bid will be rejected. (FAR 14.201-5) 
 
 
 
BIDDER INQUIRIES 
 
All bidder inquiries shall be submitted by email to Mr. Mark Jones at mark.t.jones@usace.army.mil, with a courtesy 
copy to TAS.Contracting@usace.army.mil  Inquiries will be accepted up to 6 calendar days prior to the bid closing 
date.     

 
BONDING REQUIREMENTS 
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BID GUARANTEE 
 
Bidders are required to furnish a bid guarantee in the proper form and amount, by the time set for opening 
of bids.  The amount of the bid guarantee shall be $3,000,000.  See FAR Clause 52.228-1 BID GUARANTEE 
(SEP 1996) for specific requirements. 

SUBMISSION OF OFFER GUARANTEE (BID BOND) 
 
Original signatures are required on the Standard Form 24 (bid bond).  The bid bond can be 
submitted separately (ahead of time) from the other items required (SF1442, Bid Schedule, 
Section 00600/ Representation and Certifications).  The bid bond amount is $3,000,000.  Since 
the bid bond amount is known, Contractors are HIGHLY encouraged not to wait on 
submitting their bid bond.  Contractors need to ensure they factor in adequate delivery 
time to Afghanistan when sending items via mail or FedEX/DHL/UPS. 

 

PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND REQUIREMENTS 

 

The Contractor awarded this contract is required to provide performance and payment 
bonds.  See FAR Clause 52.228-15 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS – 
CONSTRUCTION (OCT 2010).  Please note that the penal amount of performance and 
payment bonds at the time of contract award shall be 30 percent of the original contract 
price.   

 

 
 

DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
1. To ensure award is made to a responsible bidder, a determination of responsibility will be 

conducted.  The apparent low bidder will be contacted by the Contracting Officer and will be 

required to provide the requested responsibility information within 3 days.  As part of this 

responsibility determination, the Contracting Officer will utilize the guidance contained in 

FAR 9.104-1 which states to be determined responsible, a prospective contractor must: 

a.  Have adequate financial resources to perform the contract or the ability to obtain 

them. 

b. Be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery or performance schedule. 

c. Have a satisfactory performance record. 

d. Have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics. 
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e. Have the necessary organization, experience, accounting and operational controls, 

and technical skills, or the ability to obtain them. 

f. Has the necessary production, construction, and technical equipment and facilities, or 

the ability to obtain them. 

g. Be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award under applicable laws and 

regulations. 

 

 
 
  
 
 
SECTION 00700 - CONTRACT CLAUSES  
 
 
 
The following have been modified:  
         
52.228-1     BID GUARANTEE (SEP 1996) 
 
(a) Failure to furnish a bid guarantee in the proper form and amount, by the time set for opening of bids, may be 
cause for rejection of the bid. 
 
(b) The bidder shall furnish a bid guarantee in the form of a firm commitment, e.g., bid bond supported by good and 
sufficient surety or sureties acceptable to the Government, postal money order, certified check, cashier's check, 
irrevocable letter of credit, or, under Treasury Department regulations, certain bonds or notes of the United States. 
The Contracting Officer will return bid guarantees, other than bid bonds, (1) to unsuccessful bidders as soon as 
practicable after the opening of bids, and (2) to the successful bidder upon execution of contractual documents and 
bonds (including any necessary coinsurance or reinsurance agreements), as required by the bid as accepted.- 
 
(c) The amount of the bid guarantee shall $3,000,000.00.- 
 
(d) If the successful bidder, upon acceptance of its bid by the Government within the period specified for 
acceptance, fails to execute all contractual documents or furnish executed bond(s) within 10 days after receipt of the 
forms by the bidder, the Contracting Officer may terminate the contract for default.- 
 
(e) In the event the contract is terminated for default, the bidder is liable for any cost of acquiring the work that 
exceeds the amount of its bid, and the bid guarantee is available to offset the difference. 
 
(End of provision) 
  
 
(End of Summary of Changes)  
 


